1967

United Factors, A Corporation v. T. C. Associates, Inc., A Corporation, And Harry R. Ulmer, Jr., Paul J. Sugar, And Sam Herscovitz : Brief of Appellants

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action brought by United Factors against the defendant Corporation and Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. and Sam Herscovitz as individuals, on a guarantee agreement for T. C. Associates, Inc., a Corporation; that prior to the matter being tried on its merits, a stipulation was entered into which the appellants believe to be contrary to the laws of the State of Utah, and a Motion was filed to vacate the Stipulation and to allow the appellants to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim and to set aside the stipulation; all of which was denied by the lower Court and a Judgment was entered based on the stipulation against the appellants as individuals and in favor of the respondent, from which the appellants as individuals appeal.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Following the appellants Motion in open Court on the 15th day of August, 1967, the Third District Judge, Joseph G. Jeppson, denied appellants Motion to set aside the Stipulation and for leave to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim and granted Judgment to the respondent upon their oral Motion in open Court.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek reversal of the lower Court's Order denying appellants the right to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim and for an Order setting aside the Stipulation and for an Order, ordering the case to be remanded back to the lower Court so that the appellants can assert all of their defenses both legal and equitable which it was not allowed to do in the lower Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

That appellants, who were the defendants in the lower Court, will be referred to in this Brief as appellants, and that the plaintiff and respondent in this Brief will hereinafter be referred to as respondent.

T. C. Associates, Inc. was a Utah Corporation doing business in Utah, and that the officers and incorporators of said Corporation were Harry R. Ulmer, Jr., Paul J. Sugar and Sam Herscovitz; that said Corporation was engaged in the furniture business with its principal offices in Salt Lake County, State of Utah.

Sam Herscovitz and Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. as individuals signed a written guaranty with the respondent, United Factors, which was later modified as to amount

by verbal agreement of the parties limiting the joint liability as guaranteed to \$10,000.00 for the account of Bailey-Schmitz for the extension of credit to the T. C. Associates, Inc. Corporation; that said guarantees were signed by Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. and Sam Herscovitz on May 3, 1965, and pursuant to said guarantees T. C. Associates, Inc. did commence to purchase merchandise from Bailey-Schmitz.

That Bailey-Schmitz did then assign its accounts receivable of T. C. Associates, Inc. to United Factors, a New York Corporation, which is the respondent in this Brief.

That without any knowledge or information and without the consent of the appellants, either corporately or individually, the Evans and Black Carpet Mills account was also sold and assigned to United Factors, who then proceeded to use the same guarantee of Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. and Sam Herscovitz even though it was not accepted nor authorized by the said appellants herein. (R30, 31 Answer)

That prior to June 8th, 1966, T. C. Associates, Inc. became delinquent in the payment of its accounts and the respondent by and through its attorney commenced legal action against T. C. Associates, Inc. and the individuals who were the alleged guarantors; Legal action was commenced by an Acceptance of Service of the Summons only by the appellants attorney, Pete N. Vlahos, but no Complaint was served on appellants by mailing to appellants or any of its authorized agents nor by

leaving a copy with the Clerk of the Court. (R. 1, 2, and 3) Said Acceptance was dated June 8th, 1966.

Shortly after appellants attorney, Pete N. Vlahos, accepted service of the Summons only, he was hospitalized for an apparent heart attack. The appellants were without any knowledge of the Acceptance of said Service by their attorney. On June 30, 1966, a default Judgment was entered against all of the appellants who were unaware of any pending legal action brought against them because they had no knowledge of a Summons being served on Pete N. Vlahos. Appellants attorney, Pete N. Vlahos having been hospitalized was unable to notify the appellants of the Summons because of his illness. (Transcript Page 9 and Affidavit of Attorney Pete N. Vlahos attached hereto.)

The appellants first became aware of the Judgment after it was entered against them and immediately thereafter did retain Attorney Herschel J. Saperstein to represent them. Attorney Herschel J. Saperstein by proper Motion in the lower Court had the Default Judgment set aside but the Order Appointing the Receiver was not vacated. Owing to the failure of the lower Court to vacate its Order Appointing Receiver (R17, 18 and 19), T. C. Associates, Inc. was compelled to file in Bankruptcy in the Federal District Court of Utah.

On or about September 19, 1966, the appellants, Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. and Sam Herscovitz, as individuals did enter into a Stipulation allegedly an accord and satisfaction for the unpaid debts allegedly due the

respondents by the Corporation, T. C. Associates, Inc. for which there was no consideration.

Shortly thereafter appellants Sam Herscovitz and Harry R. Ulmer, Jr. reengaged Attorney Pete N. Vlahos at which point Attorney Herschel J. Saperstein withdrew as Attorney of Record. Thereupon Attorney Pete N. Vlahos made a Motion to vacate the Stipulation and permit the appellants to file a Counterclaim and an amended Answer which was denied and for which the appellants seek relief therefrom. (R43, 44, 45)

When the lower Court heard appellants Motion as stated herein the lower Court stated "It did not care about the law" (Transcript Page 5) and would not allow the presentation of legal authority.

Upon the Court denying appellants Motion as indicated herein the respondent did then file a Judgment from which the appellants as individuals are appealing.

Appellants Attorney Pete N. Vlahos tried to point out to the Court that there were issues of law and fact that the Court should hear rather than grant respondent a Judgment since T. C. Associates, Inc. had assets in the Bankruptcy Court to pay respondent the money due it by T. C. Associates when distribution was made. As of the date of the writing of this Brief no distribution has been made. The Stipulation provided that all payments made by Appellants apply on the Bailey-Schmitz account and the balance from the Bankruptcy Court. (R 51, 52, 53)

Respondents attorney by the terms of the Stipulation

did receive \$500.00 attorney fees. When Judgment was entered he sought another \$2,000.00 making the total attorney fees \$2,500.00 altogether on an unpaid amount of \$2,736.54.

At the time of appellants Motion to vacate the Stipulation and to allow appellants to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim appellants attorney Pete N. Vlahos did raise the issue that the appellants had a good and valid defense because of a misjoinder of claims and a misjoinder of parties and that said statement does not appear in the Transcript and is referred to herein by Attorney Pete N. Vlahos' Affidavit attached hereto.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT 1. That the lower Court erred in denying appellants Motion to set aside the Stipulation and in denying appellants the right to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim.

POINT 2. That the lower Court erred in granting Judgment to the respondent on the Stipulation because there was no consideration for said Stipulation even though it purported to be an accord and satisfaction of the claims of the respective parties.

POINT 3. That the lower Court erred in denying appellants Motion to file an Amended Answer and Counterclaim since there were triable issues of law and fact and therefore contrary to the laws of the State of Utah.

POINT 4. That the lower Court erred in denying appellants Motion when the appellants did in fact have a good and valid defense of misjoinder of claims and

misjoinder of parties and therefore contrary to the laws of the State of Utah.

POINT 5. That the lower Court erred in granting respondent a Judgment since the Court had no jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

POINT 1.

THAT THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANTS MOTIONS TO SET ASIDE THE STIPULATION AND IN DENYING APPELLANTS THE RIGHT TO FILE AN AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM.

Under Rule 15 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, 1953 the Code states as follows:

AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTAL PLEADINGS

(A) AMENDMENTS

“A party may amend his pleading once as a matter of course at any time before a responsive pleading is served or, if the pleading is one to which no responsive pleading is permitted and the action has not been placed upon the trial calendar, he may so amend it at any time within twenty days after it is served. Otherwise a party may amend his pleadings only by leave of Court or by written consent of the adverse party; AND LEAVE SHALL BE FREELY GIVEN WHEN JUSTICE SO REQUIRES.” (Emphasis appellants.)

The above Rule has been fairly digested and explored in Utah law and the Landmark case concerning the amending of the pleadings is found in Johnson et. ux. v. Brinkerhoff et. al., 57 P.2d 1132, a 1936 Utah Case.

One of the points made by the appellant Brinkerhoff on the appeal was that Johnson was permitted to introduce a new and different cause of action other than that originally sued upon when he filed his second Amended Complaint and the Court found that the Amended Complaint was filed before trial and the defendant's Answer thereto was filed before trial of the cause. The Court stated on Page 1136:

"No prejudice is alleged or shown in allowing the filing of the second Amended Complaint or in refusing to strike such pleading. A more liberal rule will be applied in cases where amendments are offered under such circumstances than when offered during or after trial, where the parties may be taken by surprise or handicapped in the meeting of new allegations."

The Court further went on to state on Page 1136:

"The rule, however is toward liberality in allowance of amendments to pleadings for the purpose of permitting a complete adjudication of the matters in controversy and in the furtherance of justice. The rule is well stated in 49 CJ 466, as follows:

'Subject to such limitations as arise from the time at which they are sought and from their subject matter, the policy of the law is toward liberality in the allowance of amendments and to regard them favorably in order that the real controversy between the parties may be presented, their rights determined, and the cause decided on the merits without necessary delay, hence, to allow amendments is the rule; to refuse them, the exception.'

Justice Folland in the case of Johnson v. Peck, et. al., 63 P.2d on Page 253 stated:

“The policy of the law is toward liberality in the allowance of amendments and to regard them with favor to the end that the real controversy between the parties may be settled. The liberality exercised is greatest at the time suit is commenced and decreases as the suit progresses.”

That the question of pleadings and amendments to pleadings was fully digested in the case of Hancock v. Luke et. al., 148 Pac. 452.

In this case an action was brought by the plaintiff, an attorney, who brought an action on a contract and the defendant filed a lengthy Answer and no objections were interposed by either party to the pleadings until the case was called for trial when the plaintiff moved for Judgment on the pleadings which Motion was granted by the Court and Judgment for the plaintiff was entered accordingly. The facts further show that the Attorney for the defendant made a Motion to amend the Answer and what transpired is quoted on Page 456 as follows:

“Mr. Armstrong, for defendants: Now we make a Motion if the Court please to amend the Answer. Mr. Wilson for plaintiff: We wish to resist that Motion, of course, Your Honor, because it comes too late. In the first place, there isn't anything to amend. Mr. Armstrong: There are some allegations in the Answer that we hadn't noticed, having been called into the case just lately that, may be a little ambiguous. Mr. Snyder (for plaintiff): I submit, Your Honor, it is too late now. Mr. Wilson: I would like to be heard on it if the

Court has any idea of entertaining it. The Court: It will be overruled. Mr. Armstrong: Take an exception. Mr. Wilson: We ask for Judgment, Your Honor. The Court: You may have it. Mr. Armstrong: Exception. Mr. Wilson: We will draw it up later and serve it on counsel. The Court: We will just consider ourselves adjourned."

This writer asks the Court to notice the similarity as to what occurred in the Hancock case and what transpired at the hearing on August 15th, 1967, when appellants attorneys asked the Court as follows:

Mr. Vlahos: "I may cite various cases concerning it."

The Court: "I do not care about the law, but the reason why. (Transcript Page 5)
and further the Court went on to state on Page 6 of the Transcript as follows:

"The law is no excuse."

The Court in the Hancock case on Page 456 stated:

"Why, then, was the offer to amend not timely? In case pleadings are assailed, must a party move to amend before he is apprised of what the ruling of the Court will be? We think not. We are of the opinion, therefore, that the Motion for leave to amend is timely. We are also of the opinion that, under the circumstances, it constituted reversible error for the Court to deny the Motion for leave to Amend."

And in setting forth the general law of the case the Court stated on Page 457 as follows:

"We can see no reason whatever why the defendants in this case should be denied the right of

amendment when the exercise of that right is a matter of daily occurrence in our court of justice. True, motions for judgments on the pleadings may be rare, but that is no reason why the right of amendment should be denied when timely proposed as in the case at bar."

The Court in the case of Davis Vincent Ballard, by Duane O. Ballard his Guardian Ad Litem v. Wes Buist and Ronald Baxter aka Ronny Baxter, 333 P.2d 1071 8 Utah 2d, 308, 1959 Utah Case.

The Brinkerhoff case was cited by the Court in allowing the plaintiff upon proper Motion to amend the Complaint to allow the Guardian Ad Litem, Duane O. Ballard to represent his minor son, David Vincent Ballard and the Motion was granted and the plaintiff Duane O. Ballard was appointed as plaintiff's Guardian Ad Litem after which the Guardian Ad Litem moved the Court for permission to Amend the Summons and Complaint to show that plaintiff was suing by his Guardian Ad Litem since the defendant was a minor and was in the Armed Services of the United States and the Court denied permission to amend the Summons and Complaint and granted a Motion by respondent's attorney to quash the Summons and dismiss the action.

The Court stated on Page 1073 and 1074 as follows:

"In the instant case when the Court allowed a guardian ad litem to be appointed it should have allowed his motion to amend the process and pleadings to show that the suit was being prosecuted by the infant through his guardian ad litem under the provisions of Rule 4 (h) U.R.C.P.

1953 which provides that:

‘At any time in its discretion and upon such terms as it deems just, the Court may allow any process or proof of service thereof to be amended, unless it clearly appears that material prejudice would result to the substantial rights of the party against whom the process issued.’ ”

And the Court went on further to state Rule 15, of the U.R.C.P. 1953 and stated on Page 1047 as follows:

“The amendments could prejudice none of the parties, but could only tend to serve justice. To disallow the amendments was an abuse of discretion. It has always been the rule in this state to be liberal in the allowance of amendments to the end that there can be a complete adjudication of a controversy upon the merits and so that justice may be served.”

And the Court stated in the Ballard case that the matter be remanded and the lower Court was reversed with directions to follow the high Court’s decision.

Another case that was similar wherein the Court allowed four amended Complaints was in the case of Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company v. Clegg, 135 P.2d, 919, a 1943 Utah Case:

The facts are briefly that the defendant was elected as treasurer of the Board of Education for Tooele County and on two different occasions he had bonds posted with the Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company, one for \$10,000.00 and one for \$20,000.00, and with the Board of Education’s approval the defendant placed

said sums of money in the Tooele County State Bank on December 24, 1930, and on January 14, 1931. One week after the defendant commenced his second term as treasurer, the bank closed its doors and failed and the Board of Education had on deposit a sum in excess of \$141,000.00, a portion of which they recovered from the assets of the bank and a portion of which they sued the Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company. A settlement of \$14,500.00 was arrived at after which the Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company brought action against Clegg for Clegg's failure to use care in depositing said sums of money and for failure to obtain sufficient security to see that the bank had ample funds to pay its depositors.

A trial was had in this matter and after the trial was over the Court made a minute entry on Page 921 as follows:

"The within entitled matter having been by the Court taken under advisement, the Court now renders its decision that Judgment be entered against the plaintiff and in favor of the defendant."

Thereafter the plaintiff made a motion to amend its Complaint which motion over defendant's objection was granted by the trial Court, a second amended Complaint was filed and a demurer to it was sustained. Demurrers to the third amended complaint which was filed was also sustained. The fourth amended Complaint which was filed sought recovery of \$14,500.00 on the theory of equitable subrogation and on the fourth amended Complaint the Court awarded Judgment to the Hartford In-

surance Company from which this appeal was taken.

One of the contentions raised by the defendants was that the Court erroneously allowed plaintiff to amend to state an entirely new cause of action and the Court in deciding this issue stated on Page 922 as follows:

“However, the rule that a new or different cause of action cannot be introduced by amendment cannot be taken literally. As pointed out by the California Supreme Court in a recent case, *Klopstock v. Superior Court*, 108 P.2d, 906, 910, 135 A.L.R. 318:

‘It is obvious that the unqualified way in which the rule is sometimes stated * * * cannot be accepted; for the most common kinds of amendments are those in which complaints are amended that do not state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action, and in these, and often in the case of new parties, a new cause of action is in fact for the first time introduced. All that can be required therefore (to use the language of Mr. Pomeroy), is that a wholly different cause of action shall not be introduced.’”

And in citing the following case it was stated:

“In *United States v. Memphis Cotton Oil Co.*, 288 U.S. 62, 53 S. Ct. 278, 280, 77 L.ed. 619, Cardozo J., states that the term “cause of action” may mean one thing when the question is whether it is good upon demurrer, and something different when there is a question of the amendment of a pleading or of the application of the principle of *res judicata*.”

The Court further went on and stated on Page 922:

“We have consistently encouraged all proper

amendments to pleadings to the end of having a full hearing on the merits of the entire controversy. *Hancock v. Luke*, 46 Utah 26, 148 Pac. 452." *Harman v. Yeager*, 100 Utah 30, 110 P.2d, 352." This trend toward a liberal construction of the term is looked upon with favor in other jurisdictions.

Although the appellants in the instant case does not intend introducing a new cause of action the case is only cited to show the liberality of the Utah Courts in granting leave to amend pleadings with the end result being that the parties will be given their day in Court and justice will prevail. It is stated in 71 C.J.S. 275:

"The fact that new matter may have been known to the appellant at the time the original pleadings was filed is not necessarily sufficient grounds for denying the right to amend."

The case that is almost identical in point both in facts and in law is the case that was cited previously which is the case of *Harman v. Yeager, et. al.*, 110 P.2d 352, a 1941 Utah case.

The facts of the *Yeager* case are almost similar to the procedural circumstances as to the case presently before the Court, and the facts briefly are as follows:

The plaintiff instituted an action against defendant, *Yeager*, and others to quiet title to a small tract of land in Salt Lake County. The Complaint was in the usual form for actions to quiet title and an Answer was filed with no demurrer to the Answer and when the case was called for trial plaintiff upon suggestions of trial Court moved for a Judgment on the pleadings. Defendant,

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