1968

United Factors, A Corporation v. T. C. Associates,
Inc., A Corporation, And Harry R. Ulmer, Jr., Paul J.
Sugar, And Sam Herscovitz : Brief of Respondent

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Because the record is not in chronological order, we believe it would be helpful to summarize by dates the essential parts thereof.

May 4, 1965. Agreements of Guarantee signed by Appellants, Herscovitz and Ulmer. (R. 25-28)

April 5, 1966. Letter signed by T. C. Associates, Inc., Harry R. Ulmer, Jr., and Sam Herscovitz, in which the corporation acknowledged that there was due and owing \$18,643.45 to the respondent and all parties agreed to pay the same in four installments by June 30, 1966. (R. 23-24)

June 8, 1966. Complaint filed. (R. 1-2)

June 30, 1966. Judgment by default for \$13,643.45, interest of \$530.23, Attorney's fees of \$2,000.00 and costs. (R. 37)

July 7, 1966. Motion to Set Aside Default and Vacate Judgment and Order Appointing Receiver. (R. 14) Under Paragraph 7 of said Motion, Mr. Saperstein alleged that the defendants, Ulmer and Herscovitz, have a meritorious defense to all or a portion of plaintiff's claim "by reason of the fact that the guarantee alleged in plaintiff's complaint extends, by its terms, to only a portion of the claim sued by said plaintiff." (R. 13-14)

July 27, 1966. Order setting aside Default and Vacating Judgment. In this Order the Court ruled defendants had entered their appearance and ordered them to file an answer by August 2, 1966. (R. 20)

July 28, 1966. Petition filed by T. C. Associates for an Arrangement under Chapter XI of the Bankruptcy Act.

August 8, 1966. Motion for Summary Judgment. (R. 21)

August 17, 1966. Answer of Defendants Harry Ulmer and Sam Herscovitz filed. (R. 29-34)

September 19, 1966. Stipulation of Alvin I. Smith, Herschel Saperstein, Harry Ulmer and Sam Herscovitz. (R. 51-53)

April 7, 1966 to February 27, 1967.

Payments against original principal claim of		\$18,643.45
April 7, 1966	5,000.00	
September 20, 1966	3,000.00	
October 6, 1966	1,317.88	
November 7, 1966	1,317.88	
December 6, 1966	1,317.88	
January 6, 1967	1,317.88	
February 7, 1967	1,317.88	
February 7, 1967	1,317.88	
	<hr/>	15,907.28
		<hr/>
		\$ 2,736.17

July 25, 1967. Motion to Set Aside Stipulation to File Amended Answer and Counterclaim. (R. 43-47)

August 16, 1967. Affidavit of balance unpaid. (R. 55-56)

August 17, 1967. Judgment. (R. 57-58)

STATEMENT OF POINTS

Point 1. The Trial Court did not abuse its discretion in denying appellants' motion to amend its answer and counterclaim and set aside a stipulation entered into between the parties and their respective counsel made more than nine months after the date of the stipulation.

Point 2. There was consideration whether the stipulation be deemed to be an accord and satisfaction or a compromise and settlement of the claims of the respective parties.

Point 3. All triable issues of fact had been resolved and there was no issue of law.

Point 4. The defenses of misjoinder or claims and parties is inapplicable when, as here, there was but a single claim by a single plaintiff.

Point 5. The Court had jurisdiction to enter judgment.

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN DENYING APPELLANTS' MOTION TO AMEND ITS ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM AND SET ASIDE A STIPULATION ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNSEL AFTER THE DATE OF THE STIPULATION.

Appellants are asking the Court to reverse the Trial Court's denial of a Motion to Vacate the Stipulation and for leave to file a Counterclaim and Amend Complaint (R. 43) after they have filed an answer to a complaint asserting defenses and denying personal liability as to one of the counts and after a Stipulation (R. 51) by the parties and their

counsel in which appellants admit personal liability on all counts of the complaint.

Appellants contended that the case of *Harmon vs. Yeager, et al*, 110 P. 2d 352, sets forth the applicable law on amendments in the State of Utah and claim the facts in this case are on all fours with the facts in the case here on Appeal.

We agree that the law cited therein is controlling. Appellants quoted from the court in *Harman vs. Yeager, supra*, as follows:

“Viewing the motion therefore as a speaking demurrer, when the answer was held to be bad and the defendants sought to amend, they should have been granted such right *unless under the facts admitted there was no reasonable probability that they could state a defense or make an issue on a matter material to plaintiff’s cause of action.* (Emphasis added)

The court in reversing the judgment of the trial court granting a judgment on the pleadings observed:

“We think these matters, while perhaps not constituting a positive denial of plaintiff’s allegations, certainly cannot be said to be an admission of plaintiff’s claims. They manifest an effort to join issue, and when leave to amend was asked the court should have granted the same.”

In the instant case, after joinder of the issues, appellants admitted liability on all counts of respon-

dent's complaint in the stipulation signed by the parties and their attorneys, while in the case of *Herman vs. Yeager*, the pleadings, i.e. complaint and original inarticulate answer, joined issue on matters which had not then been resolved.

Since all of respondent's allegations were admitted in the Stipulation there was no reasonable probability that appellants could state a defense and the Motion to Amend was properly denied. In fact, in the present case appellants had an opportunity to and did deny liability as to the E & B Carpet Mills account in their answer (R. 32), while in the Stipulation (R. 51) they admit personal liability to that debt. Appellants should not be allowed to constantly traverse their own personal liability to that debt. Appellants should not be allowed to constantly traverse their own position in order to suit their then present desires.

None of the cases cited by appellants involved the granting of a Motion to Amend following the entering of judgment pursuant to a stipulation which was entered into after the suit had commenced, issues joined, and the case was ready for trial and research has revealed no such cases to respondent.

Further the additional cases listed by appellant are distinguishable as to the facts and the law relied on.

Respondent agrees with the general principles

enumerated in *Johnson vs. Brinkerhoff, et al*, 57 P. 2d 1132, but submits that the sentence immediately following the quotation cited by appellants is more applicable to the facts here on appeal:

“On the other hand it has been said that well-established principles and precedents are not to be lightly set aside, and that amendments are to be allowed in furtherance of justice and not as a reward for indifference or neglect, or where prejudicial to the rights of the adverse party or placing him at an unfari disadvantage. Further, the liberality exercised in allowing amendments is greatest at the time the law suit is commenced and decreases as the suit progresses, and the rule granting amendments changes to the disadvantage of applicant upon each new amendment being allowed.”

A settlement by stipulation is a termination of litigation and highly favored in the law and once executed by the parties and their counsel, liberality toward amendments ceases, for litigation has ceased.

The case of *Johnson vs. Peck*, 63 P. 2d 253, stands for the proposition that a trial court does not abuse its discretion in refusing to allow amendment after trial and submission of the case. The court in *Johnson vs. Jeck, supra*, observed:

“The policy of the law is toward liberality in the allowance of amendments and to regard them with favor to the end that the real controversy between the parties may be settled. The liberality is greatest at the time suit is commenced and decreases as the suit pro-

gresses. The Trial Court has a broad discretion in the matter of amendments to pleadings. 49 C. J. 466, 520; *Johnson vs. Brinkerhoff* (Utah) 57 P. (2d) 1132. Where amendments to pleadings are offered so long after trial and submission of the case, and after decision of the court is announced, the parties offering such amendments have no standing to complain if their offer is refused. The Trial Court did not abuse its discretion in refusing the filing of such paper."

Since the compromise and settlement of a claim reduced to writing, signed by the parties and their counsel and made part of the record is as much a final disposition of litigation as a judgment after trial and highly favored in the law "to secure the just, speedy and inexpensive determination of every action" Rule 1 (d), the Trial Court has not abused its discretion and appellants have no standing to complain under the rationale of *Johnson vs. Peck, supra*.

Appellants cite the case of *Hancock vs. Luke, et al*, 148 P. 452. In that case, however, immediately after the court ruled sustaining plaintiff's Motion for Judgment, defendant's counsel asked for leave to amend his answer.

Respondent would agree that a request for leave to amend at that stage of the proceedings was timely. However, immediately following the portion quoted by appellants, the court observed:

"Nor can we conceive how any one can

say in advance that in this case at least a partial defense may not be set forth by a proper amendment to the answer. Nor can we see how it can successfully be contended that the motion for leave to amend was not timely made, or that prejudice or undue delay will result if allowed." (Emphasis added.)

In the instant case not only was the Motion to Amend not timely in that it was made one year after the original answer, almost 10 months after the stipulation had been executed and the appellants had made payments thereunder, but the trial court before which appellant made its Motion to Amend and Vacate the Stipulation could say in advance that no defense could be interposed, for appellants had admitted respondent's entire case in the stipulation (R. 51) and on previous occasions. In addition, respondent would be greatly prejudiced in that it had relied to its detriment on the executed stipulation for an extended period of time without proceeding to trial on the merits.

POINT II

THERE WAS CONSIDERATION WHETHER THE STIPULATION BE DEEMED TO BE AN ACCORD AND SATISFACTION OF A COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT OF THE CLAIMS OF THE RESPECTIVE PARTIES.

Appellant quotes 1 C.J.S.—Accord and Satisfaction, Section 4, Page 473. This section contains in addition the following:

“This is all that the law requires by way of consideration, and broadly speaking, wherever a creditor receives from a substituted

contract a distinct benefit which he otherwise would not have had, such benefit is sufficient to uphold the accord and satisfaction.”

P. 475 — “Where the claim or demand constitutes the subject matter of the accord is a disputed one, or unliquidated, the mere adjustment of the dispute or agreement of accord affords, *of itself*, sufficient consideration for the accord, whether or not the latter has been actually executed and satisfaction had; *and it may be added that it is ordinarily the only consideration in such case.*” (Emphasis added)

Respondent agrees with the principles stated above, and assuming the stipulation was an accord and satisfaction, submits that there was consideration within the meaning of those principles last above referred to.

Appellant cannot now maintain that the claim was not disputed, for in answer to respondent’s complaint, appellants denied personal liability as to the E and B Carpet account (R. 31), entered into a stipulation admitting personal liability as to both accounts (R. 51) and then after default under the terms of the stipulation sought to set aside the stipulation on the ground that the personal guarantee was made as to the Bailey-Schmitz account and not to E & B Carpets. (This is the same disputed matter raised by appellant prior to the execution of the stipulation). Thus since there was a real dispute, the settlement thereof constituted “sufficient consideration for the accord”. 1 C.J.S., 475.

The paragraph above stated was followed by the court in *Laws vs. Parker Petroleum Company*, 237 S.W. 2d 398 (1951) which observed:

“An accord is an agreement for the discharge of an obligation. The execution of this agreement is a satisfaction. Such an agreement must be based upon a valid consideration. *The settlement of a claim, liquidated or unliquidated which has been disputed in good faith is of itself sufficient consideration to support the agreement.*” (Emphasis added)

Appellants cite *Metropolitan State Bank vs. Cox, et al*, 302 P. 2d 188, for the proposition that an accord entered into as a result of a mistake of one of the parties results in a lack of meeting of the minds and hence an absence of consideration.

We submit that the following facts present in this case demonstrate a distinction from the above case in that no mistake of fact or law exists.

In spite of the fact that counsel for Appellant, and Appellant Herscovitz, by affidavit (R. 46-47) attempted to convince Judge Jeppson and are now urging to this Court that the stipulation and particularly the substance thereof was entered into without full disclosure of the facts to counsel, the record and the background, prior to the stipulation, demonstrate that from the very beginning Appellants have had every opportunity to protect their legal rights. The Trial Court in refusing to vacate the stipulation quickly reached this conclusion after having reviewed the file:

“You are not telling me your clients made a mistake. In fact you say they failed to communicate to their attorney. I cannot get into the question of how much a client tells his attorney. I have got to assume the attorneys are fully informed by their clients.” (R. 70, L. 17-21)

The following events demonstrate that the client had full opportunity to advise their counsel and everything points to the fact that they had previously advised counsel of every defense they might have had.

Before the letter of April 5, 1965, which was signed by all of the parties, a full discussion of the claim of \$18,643.45, plus attorney's fees, was had with respondent's counsel. Prior to June 13, 1966 when Mr. Vlahos was incapacitated, on June 1, 1966, he (Vlahos) after telephoning, wrote counsel for respondent. We quote applicable parts thereof:

“This will confirm your conversation with me by phone on May 26th, 1966 — pursuant to said conversation please be advised that in addition to the \$5,000.00 already paid on this account an additional \$5,000.00 will be paid on or before May 31st or June 1st, 1966, and an additional \$5,000.00 on or before June 30th, 1966 and the balance of \$3,643.45 will be paid by July 15, 1966.”

We must assume that at this time his client, Mr. Herscovitz, had discussed the facts of the case with him or he would not have taken it upon himself to acknowledge this obligation.

Appellants' former counsel, Mr. Saperstein, in his motion to set aside the default and vacate judgment (R. 13-14) sets out in great detail a summary of the defenses the parties defendant had to the claim. All of the reasons now being advanced by present counsel to vacate the stipulation were summarized in this motion and were discussed informally by Mr. Saperstein with respondent's counsel. The issues raised were:

1. The guarantee applied only to a portion of the claim.
2. The guarantee did not include the Evans and Black Carpet Mills account.
3. The written guarantee could be modified by an oral agreement.
4. The right to attorney's fees.
5. The right to setoffs.

Although respondent's counsel did not agree that legally the guarantors could prevail either in law or fact on the above issues, he did agree that defendants should have their day in court by having the court vacate the judgment.

The day after the above motion was filed the corporation represented by Mr. Saperstein filed a petition for an Arrangement under Chapter XI of the Bankruptcy Act; under the plan proposed, the entire claim was to have been paid by April 1, 1967.

In addition, the mistake of fact purportedly

made by appellants and supposedly not communicated to their attorney, is that the stipulation obligated them to pay "in excess of their guaranty" (R. 67); this was specifically raised by their attorney. In answer to the complaint their attorney pleaded an affirmative defense to part of the claim when he observed:

"It was further represented by plaintiff to these defendants at the time of the execution of said agreement of guarantee that the only factored account to which said agreement of guarantee would apply was that of Bailey-Schmitz." (R. 31)

Defendants' counsel thereafter urged that there was no reason to argue the case under the Motion for Summary Judgment or to set the case down for trial because payment would be made in due course, and under any circumstances the individual appellants would agree to make the payments as later arranged in the stipulation and could then recoup them from the dividends paid by the bankruptcy court. When the final draft of the stipulation was prepared by appellant's counsel, it was distinctly understood by all of the parties that all of the above issues were being resolved in the same manner as they could have been either at the conclusion of a hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, or on a settlement approved at a pretrial.

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